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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF SOUTH CAROLINA

CHARLESTON DIVISION
ELI LILLY AND COMPANY,
Plaintiff, Case No. 2:23-cv-4697-RMG
V.
TOTALITY MEDISPA LLC,
Defendant.

COMPLAINT FOR TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT,
FALSE ADVERTISING, AND UNFAIR COMPETITION

Plaintiff Eli Lilly and Company (“Plaintiff” or “Lilly”), by and through its undersigned
attorneys, files its complaint against Totality Medispa LLC (“Defendant”) for injunctive and
monetary relief. Plaintiff alleges as follows, upon actual knowledge with respect to itself and its
own acts, and upon information and belief as to all other matters.

INTRODUCTION

1. For more than 140 years, Lilly has worked tirelessly to develop and deliver trusted
and innovative medicines that meet real patient needs.

2. One of Lilly’s innovative medicines is Mounjaro®, the first and only GIP (glucose-
dependent insulinotropic polypeptide) and GLP-1 (glucagon-like peptide-1) receptor agonist
approved to treat adults with type 2 diabetes. The active ingredient in Mounjaro® is tirzepatide, a
polypeptide analogue that activates the GIP and GLP-1 receptors, which are natural incretin
hormones involved in blood sugar control. The development of tirzepatide is an example of Lilly’s

commitment to innovation for people living with chronic diseases such as diabetes.
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3. Mounjaro® is the only product containing tirzepatide that has been approved by the
U.S. Food & Drug Administration (the “FDA”). Lilly is also the only company authorized to use
the trademark Mounjaro® to identify its products containing tirzepatide. On its website, Defendant
promotes the sale of “Tirzepatide (Mounjaro) Injection[s].” The drugs Defendant is selling are not
Mounjaro®. They are compounded drug products that purport to contain tirzepatide and that are
not approved by the FDA.

4. This is an action brought pursuant to the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1051 et seq.,
related state laws and the common law, arising out of Defendant’s infringement of Plaintiff’s rights
in its Mounjaro® trademark and Defendant’s acts of false advertising and unfair competition.

Lilly’s FDA-Approved Tirzepatide
Medicine, Mounjaro®, and Registered Trademark

5. Lilly uses the trademark “Mounjaro” (the “trademark,” or the “mark”) to identify
and promote an FDA-approved drug having the active ingredient tirzepatide that Lilly markets and
sells in the United States.

6. Mounjaro® is indicated for adults with type 2 diabetes as an adjunct to diet and
exercise to improve glycemic control in adults with type 2 diabetes mellitus.

7. Mounjaro®

is a prescription-only medicine that should only be prescribed in direct
consultation with, and under the supervision of, a licensed healthcare professional.

8. Mounjaro® has been extensively studied in clinical trials and is FDA-approved for
the treatment of patients with type 2 diabetes mellitus.

9. Lilly does not sell Mounjaro®, its FDA-approved medicine containing tirzepatide,

to Defendant, for resale or redistribution. Lilly does not sell or promote Mounjaro® for chronic

weight management or weight loss.
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10. Lilly first adopted and used the Mounjaro® mark at least as early as June 3, 2022,
and has used the Mounjaro® mark continuously since that time. Lilly has extensively promoted,
advertised, and marketed its prescription-only medicines bearing the Mounjaro® mark for the
treatment of patients with type 2 diabetes mellitus in many different channels, directed both to
physicians and other health care professionals and to consumers.

11. As a result of its use of the Mounjaro® mark, Lilly owns valuable common law and
other rights in and to the Mounjaro® mark.

Defendant’s Trademark Infringement and False Advertising
in Connection With its Sale to Patients of Unapproved Compounded Drugs

12.  Defendant markets and sells to patients seeking to lose weight compounded drug
products that purport to contain tirzepatide and that are not approved by the FDA (“Unapproved
Compounded Drugs”).

13. On information and belief, the Unapproved Compounded Drugs sold by Defendant
are made by compounding pharmacies, which deliver them to Defendant for administration or
dispensing to patients.

14. The FDA defines compounding as a “practice in which a licensed pharmacist, a
licensed physician, or, in the case of an outsourcing facility, a person under the supervision of a
licensed pharmacist, combines, mixes, or alters ingredients of a drug to create a medication tailored
to the needs of an individual patient.” See https://www.fda.gov/drugs/guidance-compliance-
regulatory-information/human-drug-compounding.

15.  According to the FDA, “[c]ompounded drugs are not FDA-approved. This means
that FDA does not review these drugs to evaluate their safety, effectiveness, or quality before they

reach patients.”
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16. The FDA has further stated that: “Compounded drugs . . . do not have the same
safety, quality, and effectiveness assurances as approved drugs. Unnecessary use of compounded
drugs unnecessarily exposes patients to potentially serious health risks. Because compounded
drugs are not FDA-approved, FDA does not verify their safety, effectiveness or quality before they
are marketed.”"

17. Defendant uses Lilly’s Mounjaro® trademark to market and sell Unapproved
Compounded Drugs purporting to contain “tirzepatide” that are not Mounjaro®. Defendant uses
Lilly’s trademark to attract customers and generate revenues and profits, including by passing off
as “Mounjaro” its own Unapproved Compounded Drugs purporting to contain tirzepatide and
doing so for a use for which Mounjaro® is not approved, namely weight loss.

18. An example of Defendant’s unauthorized use of Lilly’s Mounjaro® trademark, on
the page of Defendant’s website found at https://www.totalitymed.com/medical-spa-

services/body-treatments/weight-loss/, is shown below:

Our Weight Loss Services are Physician-
Led + Include:

@ Skin Tight @ Fat Dissolving @ Nutritional
To improve the skin elasticity lnjectiﬂﬂs COllnseling

once the weight has been lost To stubbomn pockets of fat To start the path toward a
healthier life

@ Tirzepatide @ Semaglutide @ Contrave
(Mounjar()) (OzempiC) Learn More
Injection Injection

Learn More Learn More

' Compounding and the FDA: Questions and Answers, https://www.fda.gov/drugs/human-drug-
compounding/compounding-and-fda-questions-and-answers.

4
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19. On this webpage, Defendant promotes its Unapproved Compounded Drugs by
referring to one of its offerings as “Tirzepatide (Mounjaro) Injection[s].”

20. Similarly, on the Defendant’s Instagram page, on July 17, 2023, Defendant posted
a video in which it represents that it has “Mounjaro” that it gets from a compounding pharmacy

that “works just the same” as Mounjaro®™ See https://www.instagram.com/p/CuzeM0Dghbu/ and

image below:

totality_medispa » Follow

Original audio

totality_medispa If you have been taking Mounjaro, and have
been struggling to find it / pay an arm and a leg for it. we've got
youlll

We know how frustrating the weight loss journey can be; that's
why our entire weight loss program is designed for you and you
only.

There is nothing wrong with making decisions towards a
healthier lifestyle, and more self confidence!

If you are wondering if you're a candidate, schedule a free initial
weight loss consultation with one of our amazing experts 00000

#mounjaro #weightloss #semaglutide #weightlossjourney
#weightlosstransformation #ozempic #pharmacy #available
#instock #loseweight #summerbody #bikinibody
#transformation #beforeandafter #beforeandafterweightloss

Tw

Q laurie.hasan Dr. Nadel is looking so beautiful! @ V)
MANJARO |
. HERE FOR A ——  View replies (1)

FRACTION l “ v'-\ torihollis_kane Omg great news @ o
OF THE PRICE.

——  View replies (1)

6 ohwowheyitslj Awesome !l! o
Tw  Reply

404 likes

JULY 17

21.  Defendant’s website and Instagram page convey the unmistakable impression that

Defendant is offering for sale injections of Lilly’s Mounjaro® medicine.
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22. Defendant first started using Lilly’s Mounjaro® mark to advertise its Unapproved
Compounded Drugs after Lilly’s first use and registration of its Mounjaro® mark.

23. Defendant also falsely advertises its Unapproved Compounded Drugs on its
Instagram account by making statements that claim or imply that its Unapproved Compounded
Drugs are FDA-approved, including claiming or implying that the Unapproved Compounded
Drugs work “just the same” as Mounjaro®, when in fact they do not. See

https://www.instagram.com/p/CuzeM0Dghbu/ and image below:

totality medispa » Follow
Original audio

totality_medispa If you have been taking Mounjaro, and have
been struggling to find it / pay an arm and a leg for it, we've got
youlll

We know how frustrating the weight loss journey can be; that's
why our entire weight loss program is designed for you and you
only.

There is nothing wrong with making decisions towards a
healthier lifestyle, and more self confidence!

If you are wondering if you're a candidate, schedule a free initial
weight loss consultation with one of our amazing experts 00000

#mounjaro #weightloss #semaglutide #weightlossjourney
#weightlosstransformation #ozempic #pharmacy #available
#instock #loseweight #summerbody #bikinibody
#transformation #beforeandafter #beforeandafterweightloss

fw

| ‘b laurie.hasan Dr. Nadel is looking so beautifull @ o
FR OM A N, , Tw 1like Reply
| COMPOUNDING — Viewreples

PH AR MACY W'\ torihollis_kane Omg great news @

AND IT "
WORKS JUST THE

7w Reply

——  View replies (1)

@ stephanielynnhardy Wow! How much weight is ideal to loose o
per week?

Tw Tlike Replv

Qv W

404 likes

HHY A7

24, These statements are false or misleading as to Defendant’s Unapproved

Compounded Drugs.
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25. Defendant continues to use the Mounjaro® mark, including in advertising and
promotion on its website, in order to deceive customers who, upon information and belief, are
seeking to buy but are in fact not buying genuine and FDA-approved Mounjaro® medicine.

26. Defendant’s prominent and misleading use of the Mounjaro® mark is likely to cause
consumers to falsely believe that they are actually purchasing Mounjaro® medicine, that Defendant
is a source for Lilly’s FDA-approved medicine, and/or that Defendant’s services are provided,
licensed, sponsored, authorized, or approved by Lilly.

27. Defendant’s use of the Mounjaro® mark is without the permission, consent or
authorization of Lilly. Defendant has no right to use, and Defendant knows that it has no right to
use, the Mounjaro® mark in connection with Defendant’s Unapproved Compounded Drugs or
otherwise.

28. Lilly has no control over the nature, quality or efficacy of the products sold by
Defendant, including the Unapproved Compounded Drugs.

THE PARTIES

29. Plaintiff Lilly is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of Indiana and
has its principal place of business in Indiana.

30. Plaintiff promotes, offers, and sells Mounjaro® throughout the United States,
including in this District.

31. Defendant is a South Carolina limited liability company with a principal place of
business at 885 Island Park Drive, Charleston, South Carolina 29492. Defendant sells and
promotes Unapproved Compounded Drugs masquerading as Mounjaro® and/or uses the
Mounjaro® mark in its advertising and promotion of Unapproved Compounded Drugs that are not

Mounjaro®.
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE

32. The Court has subject matter jurisdiction over the Lanham Act causes of action
pleaded herein pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 1121 and 28 U.S.C. § 1338(a). The Court has supplemental
jurisdiction over the state and common law causes of action pleaded herein pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
§ 1338(b).

33. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391 because Defendant
operates in this District, manufactures and/or sells its Unapproved Compounded Drugs in this
District, and otherwise conducts business in this District. Defendant is subject to personal
jurisdiction in this District.

LILLY’S MOUNJARO® TRADEMARK

34, Plaintiff Lilly is the owner of U.S. trademark registration number 6,809,369, issued
on August 2, 2022, for the mark MOUNJARO for pharmaceutical preparations for the treatment
of diabetes, in International Class 5. A true and correct copy of Plaintiff Lilly’s registration for
the Mounjaro® mark is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

35. The Mounjaro® trademark is inherently distinctive.

36. Lilly promotes and advertises its Mounjaro® medicine to consumers and to
physicians and licensed healthcare professionals, among others, through various channels,
including on the website www.mounjaro.com, in social media, in online advertisements, and on
television.

37. As a result of Lilly’s use, promotion, and advertising of the Mounjaro® trademark
and medicine, the Mounjaro® mark is exclusively associated with Plaintiff, serves to identify

genuine Lilly products, and is a valuable asset of Lilly.
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DEFENDANT’S INFRINGING USE OF THE MOUNJARO® MARK

38. Long after the filing date of Lilly’s application to register the Mounjaro® trademark,
after Lilly’s first use of the Mounjaro® mark, and after Lilly secured federal registration for the
Mounjaro® mark, Defendant started using the Mounjaro® mark in commercial advertising and
promotion to promote its Unapproved Compounded Drugs in a false and misleading way.
Examples of Defendant’s trademark infringement and false advertising are shown above and are
attached hereto as Exhibit B.

39. Describing Defendant’s Unapproved Compounded Drugs as “Tirzepatide
(Mounjaro) Injection[s]” is a literally false statement because Defendant’s drugs are not
Mounjaro®.

40. Defendant’s advertising and promotional materials are false and misleading,
suggesting and/or stating an association with Plaintiff’s FDA-approved Mounjaro® medicine,
when no such association exists.

41. There is no need for Defendant to use the Mounjaro® trademark to advertise or
promote its Unapproved Compounded Drugs purporting to contain tirzepatide, other than to trade
upon the reputation of Plaintiff and to create confusion in the marketplace and/or mislead the
public regarding the origin, identity or source of Defendant’s Unapproved Compounded Drugs.

42. Defendant’s unauthorized use of the Mounjaro® trademark is likely to cause
confusion, to cause mistake, or to deceive, and infringes Plaintiff’s established exclusive rights in
the trademark.

43. Upon information and belief, unless enjoined by this Court, Defendant will
continue to use the Mounjaro® mark and/or otherwise falsely advertise its products as associated

with or being Mounjaro®, all in violation of Plaintiff’s rights.
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FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

Trademark Infringement in Violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1114(1)

44. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference each of the allegations contained
in the foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as though fully set forth here.

45. The Mounjaro® mark is an inherently distinctive, strong, valid, and protectable
trademark owned by Plaintiff.

46. Plaintiff’s trademark registration for its Mounjaro® mark constitutes prima facie
evidence of the validity of the mark, of Plaintiff’s registration and ownership of the mark, and of
Plaintiff’s exclusive right to use the mark in commerce on or in connection with the goods
identified in the registration.

47. By virtue of its prior use and registration, Plaintiff has priority over Defendant with
respect to the use of the Mounjaro® mark for pharmaceutical preparations sold in the United States.

48. Defendant uses the Mounjaro® mark in connection with the sale, advertising, and
promotion of Unapproved Compounded Drugs purporting to contain tirzepatide, and uses the
Mounjaro® mark to promote uses of tirzepatide for which Mounjaro® is not approved, namely
weight loss.

49. Defendant’s use in commerce of the Mounjaro® mark is likely to cause confusion,
to cause mistake, or to deceive with respect to Plaintiff’s identical mark.

50. The above-described acts of Defendant constitute infringement of a registered
trademark in violation of Section 32(1) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1114(1), entitling Plaintiff
to relief.

51. Defendant has unfairly profited from its trademark infringement.

10
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52. By reason of Defendant’s acts of trademark infringement, Plaintiff has suffered
damage to the goodwill associated with its Mounjaro® mark.

53. Defendant’s acts of trademark infringement have irreparably harmed and, if not
enjoined, will continue to irreparably harm Plaintiff, its federally-registered Mounjaro® trademark
and the valuable goodwill associated with that trademark.

54. Defendant’s acts of trademark infringement have irreparably harmed, and if not
enjoined, will continue to irreparably harm the interests of the public in being free from confusion,
mistake, and deception.

55. By reason of Defendant’s acts, Plaintiff’s remedies at law are not adequate to
compensate for the injuries inflicted by Defendant. Accordingly, Plaintiff is entitled to preliminary
and permanent injunctive relief pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1116.

56. By reason of Defendant’s willful acts of trademark infringement, Plaintiff is
entitled to an increased award of Defendant’s profits under 15 U.S.C. § 1117.

57. This is an exceptional case, making Plaintiff eligible for an award of attorneys’ fees
under 15 U.S.C. § 1117.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

Trademark Infringement, Use of False Designations of Origin
and Unfair Competition in Violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)(1)(A)

58. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference each of the allegations contained
in the foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as though fully set forth here.

59. Defendant uses the Mounjaro® mark in commerce in connection with Defendant’s
goods and services and in commercial advertising and promotion of its goods and services.

60.  Defendant uses the Mounjaro® mark in commerce in a manner that is likely to cause

confusion, or to cause mistake, or to deceive the relevant public into believing that Defendant’s

11
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goods or services are authorized, sponsored, approved by, or otherwise affiliated with Plaintiff,
with Plaintiff’s genuine Mounjaro® medicine that is not approved for weight loss, and/or with the
Mounjaro® mark.

61. The above-described acts of Defendant constitute infringement of the Mounjaro®
mark and use of false designations of origin in violation of Section 43(a)(1)(A) of the Lanham Act,
15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)(1)(A), entitling Plaintiff to relief.

62. Defendant has unfairly profited from the actions alleged.

63. By reason of the above-described acts of Defendant, Plaintiff has suffered damage
to the goodwill associated with the Mounjaro® trademark.

64. The above-described acts of Defendant have irreparably harmed and, if not
enjoined, will continue to irreparably harm Plaintiff, the Mounjaro® trademark, and the valuable
goodwill associated with the trademark.

65. The above-described acts of Defendant have irreparably harmed and, if not
enjoined, will continue to irreparably harm the interest of the public in being free from confusion,
mistake, and deception.

66. By reason of Defendant’s acts, Plaintiff’s remedies at law are not adequate to
compensate for the injuries inflicted by Defendant. Accordingly, Plaintiffis entitled to preliminary
and permanent injunctive relief pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1116.

67. Because the above-described acts of Defendant are willful, Plaintiff is entitled to
an increased award of Defendant’s profits under 15 U.S.C. § 1117.

68. This is an exceptional case, making Plaintiff eligible for an award of attorneys’ fees

under 15 U.S.C. § 1117.

12
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THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

False and Misleading Advertising and Promotion
in Violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)(1)(B)

69.  Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference each of the allegations contained
in the foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as though fully set forth here.

70.  Defendant’s practices, as described in this Complaint, constitute unfair competition
and false advertising in violation of Section 43(a)(1)(B) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C.
§ 1125(a)(1)(B).

71.  Defendant has violated the Lanham Act by using false or misleading descriptions
of fact and false or misleading representations of fact in its commercial advertising or promotion
that misrepresent the nature, characteristics, and/or qualities of Defendant’s business practices and
products, as set forth above.

72.  As set forth above, Defendant makes numerous false and/or misleading statements
on its website and Instagram account, including that it is offering for sale “Tirzepatide (Mounjaro)
Injection[s],” that its Unapproved Compounded Drugs work “just the same” as Mounjaro®.

73.  Defendant’s statements falsely imply that Defendant’s Unapproved Compounded
Drugs are Mounjaro® and/or are FDA-approved, which they are not.

74.  The above-described acts of Defendant, if not enjoined by this Court, are likely to
deceive members of the general public.

75.  The above-described acts of Defendant have irreparably harmed and, if not
enjoined, will continue to irreparably harm Plaintiff.

76.  The above-described acts of Defendant have irreparably harmed and, if not
enjoined, will continue to irreparably harm the interest of the public in being free from confusion,

mistake, and deception.

13
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77. By reason of Defendant’s acts as alleged above, Plaintiff has suffered and will
continue to suffer injuries, including injury to Plaintiff’s business reputation. However, Plaintiff’s
remedies at law are not adequate to compensate for all the injuries inflicted by Defendant.
Accordingly, Plaintiff is entitled to preliminary and permanent injunctive relief requiring
Defendant to cease its false and misleading advertising and promotion and unfair competitive
practices.

78. Because the above-described acts of Defendant are willful, Plaintiff is entitled to
an increased award of Defendant’s profits under 15 U.S.C. § 1117.

79. This is an exceptional case, making Plaintiff eligible for an award of attorneys’ fees
under 15 U.S.C. § 1117.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

South Carolina Common Law Unfair Competition

80. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference each of the allegations contained
in the foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as though fully set forth here.

81. The above-described acts of Defendant constitute common law unfair competition
and trademark infringement in violation of South Carolina common law.

82. The above-described acts of Defendant unfairly and wrongfully exploit Plaintift’s
trademark, goodwill and reputation.

83. By reason of the above-described acts of Defendant, Plaintiff has suffered damage
to the goodwill associated with the Mounjaro® trademark.

84. The above-described acts of Defendant have irreparably harmed and, if not

enjoined, will continue to irreparably harm Plaintiff and the Mounjaro® trademark.

14
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85. The above-described acts of Defendant have irreparably harmed and, if not
enjoined, will continue to irreparably harm the interest of the public in being free from confusion,
mistake, and deception.

86. By reason of Defendant’s acts, Plaintiff’s remedies at law are not adequate to
compensate for the injuries inflicted by Defendant. Accordingly, Plaintiff is entitled to preliminary
and permanent injunctive relief, in addition to monetary relief such as disgorgement of
Defendant’s profits, and corrective advertising costs.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

Violation of South Carlina Unfair Trade Practices Act, S.C. Code § 39-5-20

87. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference each of the allegations contained
in the foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint as though fully set forth here.

88. The above-described acts of Defendant constitute unfair methods of competition,
and/or unconscionable, deceptive, or unfair acts or practices in violation of the laws of the State of
South Carolina, including South Carolina’s Unfair Trade Practices Act, S.C. Code § 39-5-20.
(“SCUTPA”).

89. SCUPTA prohibits “unfair methods of competition or unfair [ ] acts or practices in
the conduct of any trade or commerce.” S.C. Code § 39-5-20(a). Under South Carolina law, an
act is “unfair” when it is offensive to public policy or when it is immoral, unethical or oppressive.

90. Defendant has engaged in unfair methods of competition and unfair trade acts and
practices in violation of SCUTPA by unlawfully delivering for introduction into intrastate
commerce drugs that have not been approved under South Carolina or federal law, in violation of

S.C. Code § 39-23-70, including Defendant’s drugs purporting to contain tirzepatide. Defendant’s

15
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delivering such drugs for introduction into intrastate commerce is offensive to public policy,
immoral, unethical and oppressive, as it is unlawful under South Carolina law.

91. Plaintiff has suffered actual, ascertainable damages and injury as a result of
Defendant’s unlawful trade practices and unfair methods of competition and unfair acts, and some
sales made by Defendant would have been made by Plaintiff, but for Defendant’s unlawful and
unfair competition as described herein.

92. Defendant’s unlawful trade practices have had an adverse impact on the public
interest in the manner set forth above. And Defendant’s unlawful trade practices have the potential
for repetition because they have occurred on multiple occasions in the past (and are ongoing), see
supra 99 18-24, thus making it likely they will continue to occur absent deterrence.

93. Plaintiff is entitled to treble damages for Defendant’s willful or knowing violation
of S.C. Code § 39-5-140, and reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, pursuant to S.C. Code § 39-5-
140.

REQUEST FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests judgment against Defendant as follows:
1. That the Court enter a judgment against Defendant that Defendant has:
a. Infringed the rights of Plaintiff in its federally-registered Mounjaro®
mark, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1114(1);
b. Infringed the rights of Plaintiff in the Mounjaro® mark and engaged in
unfair competition, in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a);
c. Engaged in false and misleading advertising and promotion, in violation

of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a);

16
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d. Engaged in unfair competition and trademark infringement under the
common law of South Carolina and the South Carolina Unfair Trade
Practices Act.

2. That each of the above acts was willful.

3. That the Court preliminarily and permanently enjoin and restrain Defendant and its
agents, servants, employees, successors and assigns, and all other persons acting in concert with
or in conspiracy with or affiliated with Defendant, from:

a. Using the trademark Mounjaro® or any mark confusingly similar to it,
in connection with the advertising, promoting, marketing, selling or
offering for sale of any goods or services (including, but not limited to,
Unapproved Compounded Drugs) or otherwise engaging in any activity
that is likely to cause confusion, cause mistake or deceive or otherwise
infringes any rights of Plaintiff in and to the Mounjaro® mark or any
similar mark;

b. Falsely stating or suggesting that Defendant’s Unapproved
Compounded Drugs are genuine Mounjaro®, that Defendant is
associated or connected in any way with Plaintiff or its products, or that
Defendant’s Unapproved Compounded Drugs are approved by the
FDA, have been the subject of clinical studies, or achieve certain
therapeutic outcomes;

c. Engaging in any unfair competition with Plaintiff; and

d. Engaging in any deceptive acts.

17
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4. Requiring Defendant, its agents, servants, employees, successors and assigns, and
all other persons acting in concert with or in conspiracy with or affiliated with Defendant, to
engage in corrective advertising by informing consumers that Defendant is not and never has been
authorized by, affiliated with, sponsored by, approved by, or related to Plaintiff or genuine
Mounjaro® medicine, that Defendant’s product is not “Mounjaro,” and that Defendant’s
Unapproved Compounded Drugs are not and have never been genuine Mounjaro® products or
approved by the FDA.

5. That Plaintiff be awarded monetary relief, in the form of an award of Defendant’s
profits, for Defendant’s trademark infringement, false advertising and unfair competition, and that
this monetary relief be increased due to Defendant’s willfulness, in accordance with the provisions
of 15 U.S.C. § 1117 and any applicable state laws.

6. That Defendant be ordered to account for and disgorge to Plaintiff all amounts by
which Defendant has been unjustly enriched by reason of Defendant’s unlawful actions.

7. That Plaintiff be awarded punitive damages by reason of Defendant’s willful
unlawful actions.

8. For pre-judgment and post-judgment interest on all damages.

0. That the Court award Plaintiff its reasonable attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C.
§ 1117, and any other applicable provision of law.

10. That the Court award Plaintiff the costs of suit incurred herein.

11. For such other or further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

18
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Dated: September 19, 2023

Respectfully submitted,

s/ George C. Johnson

George C. Johnson (Fed. ID No. 6538)
I.S. Leevy Johnson (Fed. ID No. 2194)
george@jtbpa.com

JOHNSON TOAL & BATTISTE PA
1615 Barnwell St.

Columbia, SC 29201

Telephone: (803) 252-9700

Facsimile: (803) 252-9102

Joseph N. Akrotirianakis

(Pro Hac Vice application forthcoming)
jakro@kslaw.com

Aaron Craig
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Digitally Signed By: United States Patent and Trademark Office
Location: United States Patent and Trademark Office
Date: 2022.07.17 04:51:03 -04'00"

Enited States of Jnyp,.

WUnited States Patent and Trademark Office

f[a

MOUNJARO

Reg. No. 6,809,369 Eli Lilly and Company (INDIANA CORPORATION)

. Lilly Corporate Center
Registered Aug. 02, 2022 Indianapolis, INDIANA 46285

Int. Cl.: 5 CLASS 5: Pharmaceutical preparations, namely, pharmaceutical preparations for the

Trademark treatment of diabetes

Principal Reglster FIRST USE 6-3-2022; IN COMMERCE 6-3-2022

THE MARK CONSISTS OF STANDARD CHARACTERS WITHOUT CLAIM TO
ANY PARTICULAR FONT STYLE, SIZE OR COLOR

SER. NO. 88-680,946, FILED 11-05-2019

Kodrwvine Kally-Vida

Director of the United States
Patent and Trademark Office
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REQUIREMENTSTO MAINTAIN YOUR FEDERAL TRADEMARK REGISTRATION

WARNING: YOUR REGISTRATION WILL BE CANCELLED IF YOU DO NOT FILE THE
DOCUMENTSBELOW DURING THE SPECIFIED TIME PERIODS.

Requirementsin the First Ten Years*
What and When to File:

» First Filing Deadline: You must file a Declaration of Use (or Excusable Nonuse) between the 5th and 6th
years after the registration date. See 15 U.S.C. 881058, 1141k. If the declaration isaccepted, the
registration will continue in force for the remainder of the ten-year period, calculated from the registration
date, unless cancelled by an order of the Commissioner for Trademarks or afederal court.

» Second Filing Deadline: You must file a Declaration of Use (or Excusable Nonuse) and an Application
for Renewal between the 9th and 10th years after the registration date.* See 15 U.S.C. §1059.

Requirementsin Successive Ten-Year Periods*
What and When to File:

* You must file a Declaration of Use (or Excusable Nonuse) and an Application for Renewal
between every 9th and 10th-year period, calculated from the registration date.*

Grace Period Filings*

The above documents will be accepted as timely if filed within six months after the deadlines listed above with the
payment of an additional fee.

*ATTENTION MADRID PROTOCOL REGISTRANTS: The holder of an international registration with an
extension of protection to the United States under the Madrid Protocol must timely file the Declarations of Use (or
Excusable Nonuse) referenced above directly with the United States Patent and Trademark Office (USPTO). The
time periods for filing are based on the U.S. registration date (not the international registration date). The
deadlines and grace periods for the Declarations of Use (or Excusable Nonuse) are identical to those for nationally
issued registrations. See 15 U.S.C. §81058, 1141k. However, owners of internationa registrations do not file
renewal applications at the USPTO. Instead, the holder must file a renewa of the underlying international
registration at the International Bureau of the World Intellectual Property Organization, under Article 7 of the
Madrid Protocol, before the expiration of each ten-year term of protection, calculated from the date of the
international registration. See 15 U.S.C. 81141j. For more information and renewal forms for the international
registration, see http://www.wipo.int/madrid/en/.

NOTE: Fees and requirements for maintaining registrations are subject to change. Please check the
USPTO website for further information. With the exception of renewal applications for registered
extensions of protection, you can file the registration maintenance documents referenced above online at
http://www.uspto.gov.

NOTE: A courtesy eemail reminder of USPTO maintenance filing deadlines will be sent to trademark
ownergholders who authorize e-mail communication and maintain a current e-mail address with the
USPTO. To ensure that email is authorized and your address is current, please use the Trademark
Electronic Application System (TEAS) Correspondence Address and Change of Owner Address Forms
available at http://www.uspto.gov.

Page: 2 of 2/ RN # 6809369
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https://www.totalitymed.com/medical-spa-services/body-treatments/weight-loss/

Our Weight Loss Services are Physician-
Led + Include:

@ Skin Tight @ Fat Dissolving @ Nutritional

Toimprove the skin elasticity lnjectlﬂﬂs COllllsellllg

once the weight has been lost To stubborn pockets of fat To start the path toward a
healthier life

@ Tirzepatide @ Semaglutide @ Contrave
(MO“ njal‘O) (Ozelllpi(!) Learn More
Injection Injection

Learn More Learn More
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https://www.instagram.com/p/CuzeM0Dghbu/ (July 17, 2023)
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totality_medispa « Follow
Original audio

totality_medispa If you have been taking Mounjaro, and have
been struggling to find it / pay an arm and a leg for it, we've got
youlll

We know how frustrating the weight loss journey can be; that's
why our entire weight loss program is designed for you and you
only.

There is nothing wrong with making decisions towards a
healthier lifestyle, and more self confidence!

If you are wondering if you're a candidate, schedule a free initial
weight loss consultation with one of our amazing experts 00000

#mounjarc #weightloss #semaglutide #weightlossjourney
#weightlosstransformation #ozempic #pharmacy #available
#instock #loseweight #summerbody #bikinibody
#transformation #beforeandafter #beforeandafterweightloss
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